## COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS Board of Registration in Pharmacy

## NOTICE OF THE REGULARLY SCHEDULED MEETING OF THE BOARD OF REGISTRATION IN PHARMACY

October 1, 2021

# Webex Information

The regular session is open to the public by video or phone.

For video access click on the following link:

://statema.webex.com/statema/onstage/g.php?MTID=

To access the meeting by phone:

Call in Number: 1-203-607-0564 or toll free 1-866-692-3580

Access Code: 2434 741 2320

Attendee: #

If you need reasonable accommodations in order to participate in the meeting, contact the DPH ADA Coordinator \_, Phone: 617-624-5848 in advance of the meeting. While the Board will do its best to accommodate you, certain accommodations may require distinctive requests or the hiring of outside contractors and may not be available if requested immediately before the meeting.

## Agenda

Time	#	Item	Page	Contact
8:00	Ι	CALL TO ORDER		J. Lanza
	II	APPROVAL OF AGENDA		
8:05	III	<ul> <li>APPROVAL OF BOARD MINUTES</li> <li>Draft of September 17, 2021 Regular Session Minutes</li> </ul>		

8:10	IV	<b>REPORTS</b> • Applications approved pursuant to Licensure Policy 13-01• Monthly report from probation• Board Delegated Review pursuant to Licensure Policy 14-02• PSUD Report-Policy 17-03
8:15	V	FLEX       • Pharmacy issues related to Covid-19 and the state of emergency         • Future Board Meeting Dates         • Update on USP <797> and USP <795>
8:20	VI	APPLICATIONS• Fairhaven Pharmacy Inc - New Community Pharmacy• Sebela Pharmacy RxDirect – New Community Pharmacy• Genoa Healthcare/Springfield- New Community Pharmacy• Spectra Medical Devices – Transfer of Ownership
9:00	VII	<ul> <li>POLICIES</li> <li>Policy 2020-11: Vaccine Administration</li> <li>Policy 2021-04: Continuing Education (CE) Requirements</li> </ul>
9:15	VIII	<b>REQUEST FOR REINSTATEMENT</b> • Gene Svirskiy – PH26669; PHA-2019-0021
9:30	IX	PTT LICENSE EXTENSION REQUESTPTT08447 Londono, Hong Issue Date: 06/18/2020CVS 100 hours Expiration Date: 06/18/2021PTT05905 Marks, Shatara Issue Date: 08/07/2019 Expiration Date:08/07/2020PTT08488 Marques, Karen Issue Date: 06/18/2020CVS 5 hours Expiration Date:06/18/2020Expiration Date:
9:45	X	I         CAS-2021-0776         PHA-2021-0073         Jufang Shi, PH27349           2         CAS-2021-0512         SA-INV-18073         George Owusu-Ansah, PH26263

10:0 0	XI	<b>EXECUTIVE SESSION</b> The Board will meet in Executive Session as authorized pursuant to M.G.L. c. 30A, § 21(a)(1) for the purpose of discussing the reputation, character, physical condition or mental health, rather than professional competence, of an individual, or to discuss the discipline or dismissal of, or complaints or charges brought against, a public officer, employee, staff member or individual. Specifically, to evaluate the Good Moral Character as required for registration for a pending applicant.		CLOSED SESSION
10:3 0	XII	M.G.L. c. 112, § 65C SESSION		CLOSED SESSION
11:0 0	XIII	ADJOURNMENT		

#### COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS BOARD OF REGISTRATION IN PHARMACY

MINUTES OF THE GENERAL SESSION Via Remote WebEx Meeting October 1, 2021

#### **Board Members Present**

Julie Lanza, CPhT, President Sebastian Hamilton, Pharm D, MBA, RPh President-Elect Andrew Stein, PharmD Timothy Fensky, RPh Susan Cornacchio, JD, RN Caryn Belisle, RPh, MBA John Rocchio, PharmD Jennifer Chin, RPh Dr. Richard Lopez, MD Dawn Perry, JD Katie Thornell, RPh, MBA

#### **Board Members Not Present**

Carly Jean-Francois, RN, NP Secretary

#### **Board Staff Present**

David Sencabaugh, RPh, Executive Director Heather Engman, JD, Board Counsel William Frisch, RPh Director of Pharmacy Compliance Richard Harris, Program Analyst Joanna Chow, Office Support Specialist Joanne Trifone, RPh, Director of Investigation Gregory Melton, PharmD, JD, Investigator Julienne Tran, PharmD, Investigator Nancy Aleid, Compliance Officer

**TOPIC I**. Attendance by roll call:

#### CALL TO ORDER 8:01 AM

A quorum of the Board was present, established by roll call. President Julie Lanza chaired the meeting and she explained that the Board of Pharmacy was recording the meeting.

Roll call attendance: J. Lanza, yes; S. Hamilton, yes; C. Belisle, yes; A. Stein; J. Rocchio, yes; J. Chin, yes; S. Cornacchio, yes; R. Lopez, yes; T. Fensky, yes; D. Perry, yes. K. Thornell, yes.

Topic II.

**Approval of Agenda** 

**TIME 8:01 AM** 

Agenda 09/17/21

#### **DISCUSSION:**

Defer: none Dave introduces APPE Students: Orlee Anina and Kim Tran MCP Worcester

### ACTION:

Motion by C. Belisle, seconded by K. Thornell and voted unanimously by those present to approve the agenda with no noted change by roll call vote.

### Topic III

**Approval of Board Minutes** 

TIME: 8:04 AM

Minutes

1. Draft 8/20/21

Change: no changes

Action:

Motion by C. Belisle seconded J. Chin and voted unanimously to approve the regular session minutes of 8/20/21 with noted change by roll call vote. J. Lanza abstain.

TOPIC IVREPORTSApplications approved pursuant to Licensure Policy 13-01Time: 8:06 AMDiscussion: R. HARRIS reported there were fifty-seven (57) Change of Manager applications and two (2)Renovation applications approved pursuant to Licensure Policy 13-01.

So	noted
----	-------

TOPIC IV Monthly Report from Probation REPORTS

Time: 8:06 AM

Discussion: R. HARRIS noted the report will be reviewed during the next board meeting.

So noted

TOPIC IVREPORTSMonthly Report from BDR pursuant to Policy 14-02Time: 8:06 AM

**Discussion**: D. SENCABAUGH noted that there was two (2) Board Delegated Review case heard on September 16, 2021. The first was a Reported Loss of Controlled substance (PHA-2021-00574,) which was referred to Office of Prosecution for an Order to Show Cause, and authorizes resolution with a Consent Agreement for Non-Disciplinary Stayed Probation for One Year, with terms to follow the loss protocol, including exact monthly counts of all benzodiazepines. The second was a CE self-disclosure

Page 2 of 11

(SA-INV-18093) which was closed with discipline not warranted, remediation complete. The Board Delegated Review session was attended by Sebastian Hamilton as the Board President-Elect, W. FRISCH Director of Pharmacy Compliance, M. JARDONNET (delegate for H. ENGMAN) as Board Counsel, and Executive Director D. SENCABAUGH.

So noted

	-			
ΤΟΡΙΟ Ι	/ REPORTS			
PSUD Re	PSUD Report by Staff Action 17-03 Time: 8:07 AM			
<b>Discussion</b> : M. BOTTO noted that in September 2021, there is one (1) pending admission and fifteen (15) active participants. The next quarterly meeting with all participants is in October. So noted				
TOPIC V	Flex			
1.	Pharmacy Issues related to Covid-19 and state of emergency.	Time:	8:08 AM	
	Presented by: D. SENCABAUGH			
	There is nothing new to report.			
2.	Future Board Meeting Dates	Time:	8:08 AM	
	Presented by: D. SENCABAUGH			

Virtual meetings will continue through next year and will return to monthly starting January 6, 2022, through April 7, 2022, on the first Thursday of every month.

There will be no meeting on November 26, 2021.

So noted.

## 3. Update USP <797> and <795>

Presented by: W. FRISCH

On September 1, 2021, USP's Healthcare Quality & Safety Team sent out a communication regarding proposed revisions to USP <795>, Pharmaceutical Compounding of Nonsterile Preparations and USP <797>, Pharmaceutical Compounding of Sterile Preparations.

Time: 8:11 AM

The two revised draft chapters have been the subject of appeals, primarily related to the beyond-use-date sections of the chapters. Due to the appeals, subsequent stakeholder engagement, and USP Expert Committee review, additional revisions were made to both draft chapters. There were minimal revisions to the prior draft of USP <795>, but there were more significant revisions to the prior draft of USP <797>.

Highlights of the most recent USP <795> revisions include:

- Expanded guidance for assigning beyond-use dates (BUDs) for compounded nonsterile preparations (CNSPs) in the absence of stability information;
- Elaboration on the role of water activity in determining BUD limits for preparations; and
- Clarification of requirements for identifying the need for a recall and related procedures.

Highlights of the most recent USP <797> revisions include:

- Expanded guidance for assigning beyond-use dates (BUD) for compounded sterile preparations (CSPs).
- Renaming of CSP microbial risk levels to now include 3 categories of compounding:
  - Category 1 and 2CSPs: distinguished primarily by the facility in which they are made and the length of time within which they must be used. Category 1 CSPs have shorter BUDs and may be prepared in an unclassified segregated compounding area;
  - Category 2 CSPs: have longer BUDs and must be prepared in a cleanroom suite; and
  - Category 3 CSPs: those that may be assigned longer BUDs than the limits for Category 1 or Category 2 CSPs, up to 180 days, if additional requirements are met (such as increased environmental monitoring, additional garbing requirements, and increased cleaning & disinfecting procedures).
- Added guidance on assigning BUDs to compounded multiple-dose containers, including information on assigning BUDs for non-preserved ophthalmic CSPs; and
- Added information on notification and recall of CSPs with out-of-specification results.

USP provided for an extended public comment period on the proposed changes until January 31, 2022. Open Forum Sessions have been made available for stakeholder comment on each chapter with two occurring in September and the other two scheduled for January 2022. Written comment may also be submitted directly to USP.

Current chapters of USP <795> and USP <797> remain in effect until the revised draft chapters are made official.

Changes are still being reviewed, but the proposed revisions should have minimal impact on the draft regulations at 247 CMR 18.00, Non-Sterile Compounding but will likely have more impact on the draft of 247 CMR 17.00, Sterile Compounding primarily related to the new Category 3 requirements.

#### So noted

#### **TOPIC VI**

#### Applications

1. Fairhaven Pharmacy Inc New Community Pharmacy Represented by: Brian Menses RPh & Thomas Cory RPh

TIME: 8:15 AM

### Recusal:

Discussion: B. Menses indicated that both him and T. Cory are starting independent pharmacy in his hometown because there are no independent pharmacies in the area. B. Menses indicates that the operating hours will be Monday-Friday 9-6 and Saturday 9-1 and will be closed on Sunday. B. Menses will be the pharmacy manager and there will be other trained staff members including a pharmacy technician. BORP inquired if they have a contingency plan in the event of an emergency and B. Menses stated that T. Cory will cover for the manager of record, and they have also hired another pharmacist who is trained and on payroll. BORP inquired as to what they plan on doing when the pharmacy is closed on Sundays and B. Menses indicated that they have an answering service but don't have anyone on call on Sundays. B. Menses states that Fairhaven Pharmacy does not plan on completing immunizations until they are registered with MISS. The facility used for the pharmacy is a mix of commercial and residential. B. Menses states that they don't plan on compounding and intend on referring the patient to compounding pharmacy if a prescription needed compounding. T. Cory indicated that they have a scale and designated compounding area but don't plan on compounding medications and have not petitioned for any waivers. BORP indicated that unless they have petitioned for a waiver, they are required to accept compound prescriptions, T. Cory indicated that they were prepared to do so to better serve their community. BORP inquired as to whether they plan on having a delivery system and T. Cory indicates that they do, and that the driver is reliable.

A motion was made by T. Fensky to approve the new community pharmacy pending successful inspection; Seconded by A. Stein, then Board Members presented voted unanimously by rollcall to approve motion.

2. Sebela Pharmacy RxDirect New Community Pharmacy

Deferred

3. Genoa Healthcare/SpringfieldNew Community PharmacyTime: 8:24Represented by: Megan Garrity RPh, and Kevin O'Connell RPh

## Recusal:

Discussion: M. Garrity described that she sought to open a new pharmacy that will operate similar to all other Genoa locations in MA with their main priority to service all pharmacy needs, specifically behavioral health needs. M. Garrity indicates that she applied for 6 waivers they don't intend to compound and requested to waive signage requirements all of which were included in the board packet.

A motion was made by S. Hamilton to approve the new community pharmacy pending successful inspection and approval of waivers; Seconded by T. Fensky, then Board Members present voted unanimously by rollcall to approve motion.

4. Spectra Medical Devices WD515 Transfer of Ownership TIME: 8:28 Represented by: Jose Agustin Corporate Director, and Turriza Ahumada Former Corporate Director

Recusal:

Discussion: J. Augustin described that he sought BORP's approval for a transfer of ownership as an established wholesale retailer. J. Augustin states that everything remains in place as it previously was under the prior ownership. Spectra Medical Services had an inspection last December with no changes to existing processes. Ray had sent final bill of sale to BORP via email. anna, A. Stein inquired as to whether transfer of ownership could have been approved via staff action. T. Ahumada indicated that the only change in this transfer of ownership is in the name of the facility from Inc. to LLC.

A motion was made by A. Stein to approve the transfer of ownership; Seconded by C. Belisle, , then Board Members present voted unanimously by rollcall to approve motion.

#### TOPIC VII

Policies

## 1. Policy 2020-11 Vaccine Administration

Time: 8:30 AM

Presented by: W. FRISCH

**Discussion:** Edits to this policy further distinguish the qualified pharmacy technician and intern/pharmacist requirements. The original language only referred to "qualified pharmacy personnel" and these wording edits should make things clearer for our licensees.

J. ROCCHIO asked for further clarification regarding the difference between a pharmacy technician who is qualified and an intern in regard to who they may immunize.

W. FRISCH responded that qualified pharmacy technicians can administer flu and COVID vaccines for ages 3 years and above. For other ACIP vaccines, qualified pharmacy technicians can only vaccinate for ages 3 to 18 years.

**Action:** Motion by C. BELISLE, seconded by T. FENSKY, and voted unanimously by those present, to approve the updated policy.

## 2. Policy 2021-04 Continuing Education (CE) Requirements

Time: 8:35 AM

Presented by: W. FRISCH

Page 6 of 11

**Discussion:** Many updates were made, including additions from regulations.

- A new category for acceptable credits was added called the Interprofessional Continuing Education ("IPCE"). This organization provides a single approval number for programs intended for multiple healthcare disciplines. ACPE is a co-founder of this organization.
- The criteria for which duties require compounding CEs have changed. Pharmacists whose only involvement with compounding is to verify patient medication orders that may require compounding by others are no longer required to obtain the CEs.
- Due to the limited availability of complex non-sterile CEs, the criteria for acceptable programs need only have "non-sterile" or "USP <795>" in their titles.

**Action:** Motioned by S. HAMILTON, seconded by K. THORNELL, and voted unanimously by those present, to approve the policy.

**TOPIC VII** 

1. PHA-2019-0021

Request for Reinstatement Gene Svirsky PH26669

Time: 8:36am

Represented by: None

Recusal: Frisch & Stein

Discussion: H. ENGMAN provided background to BORP regarding SVIRSKY's conviction and prison sentence for multiple felonies committed while working as a pharmacist at New England Compounding Center. ENGMAN explained that SVIRSKY entered into a consent agreement with BORP for one year suspension ending in January 2022 followed by probation based on his convictions. ENGMAN indicated that SVIRSKY submitted a petition for early termination of his suspension. In his petition, SVIRSKY explained that he was recently released from prison, and he was offered employment at a pharmacy in a non-licensed capacity. Engman recommended that BORP deny the petition. ENGMAN indicated that BORP denied similar petitions for early termination of the conditions in the consent agreement difficult.

ACTION: A motion was made by T. FENSKY to deny the petition; Seconded by C. BELISLE, then Board Members present voted unanimously by rollcall to approve motion.

ΤΟΡΙϹ ΙΧ	PTT License Extension Request		
1. PTT08447	Londono, Hong	TIME: 8:52am	
Represented by: Pro Se			
Recusal: Cornacchio, Rocchio, & Anina			

Discussion: H. LONDONO submitted a petition for an extension of the expiration of her pharmacy technician trainee license (PTT). LONDONO explained that she was unable to train in the pharmacy at the store where she worked due to lack of opportunity caused by increased demands of COVID-19

at work. LONDONO then explained that she recently transferred to a different store within the same chain and the pharmacy pledged to provide training hours for her.

ACTION: A motion was made by S. HAMILTON to grant a one-year extension of the expiration date for LONDONO's PTT license; Seconded by C. BELISLE, then Board Members present voted unanimously by rollcall to approve motion.

2. PTT05905 Represented by: Pro Se Marks, Shatara

TIME: 8:56am

Recusal: Cornacchio, Rocchio, Anina

Discussion: Technical Difficulties caused a delay in hearing S. MARKS' petition for an extension of the expiration of her pharmacy technician trainee license (PTT) until 8:58am. In addition, D. PERRY left at 8:58 and was not present for MARKS' petition. MARKS explained that she obtained pharmacy certification from Roxbury Community College (RCC), but RCC was unable to provide externship training due to lack of opportunity for placement. MARKS then explained that she sought and obtained a position as a pharmacy technician trainee on her own volition at a chain pharmacy.

ACTION: A motion was made by J. CHIN to grant a one-year extension of the expiration date for MARKS' PTT license; Seconded by T. FENSKY, then Board Members present voted unanimously by rollcall to approve motion with the exception of D. PERRY who left at 8:58am as described above.

3. PTT08488 Marques, Karen

TIME: 8:56

Represented by: Pro Se

Recusal: Cornacchio, Rocchio, Anina

Discussion: BORP heard K. MARQUES' petition for an extension of the expiration of her pharmacy technician trainee license (PTT) out of order according to the agenda due to technical difficulties. MARQUES explained that she was unable to train in the pharmacy at the store where she worked due to lack of opportunity. MARQUES indicated that the manager of record was on medical leave and past away. MARQUES then explained that she recently transferred to a different store within the same chain and the pharmacy pledged to provide training hours for her.

ACTION: A motion was made by C. BELISLE to grant a one-year extension of the expiration date for MARQUES PTT license; Seconded by D. PERRY, then Board Members present voted unanimously by rollcall to approve motion.

#### TOPIC X

**File Review** 

Case #1/CAS-2021-0776

Page 8 of 11

PHA-2021-0073

#### RECUSAL: NONE

<u>DISCUSSION</u>: S. PENTA presented and summarized the investigative report that pertained to these matters.

- On 8/6/21, Pharmacist Shi appeared at the Board of Pharmacy (Board) meeting for an application for a wholesale distributor license for OakmontScript which included the Recommended Decision dated 6/11/21 of the Administrative Law Judge for revocation of OakmontScript's DEA CORs. The Board voted to deny the application.
- The Recommended Decision showed OakmontScript, under the direction of Pharmacist Shi as its owner, was found to have exported controlled substances prior to obtaining a DEA Exporter COR; exported controlled substances it was not approved to export; demonstrated of a lack of candor about the controlled substances it was exporting; falsified a copy of its DEA registration to indicate it was a pharmacy; and failed to keep complete and accurate records. Additionally, by distributing controlled substances to an individual not registered with the DEA and dispensed controlled substances to fulfill prescriptions for underage patients, OakmontScript acted as a pharmacy.
- In response to the complaint, Pharmacist Shi indicated she had been fired from OakmontScript and OakmontScript will file for bankruptcy. She stated, "Please deal with my license with your information. I do not contest your decision I do not have out of state licenses". In a second response, Pharmacist Shi related, "This is to confirm that I have no information to provide for your complaint regarding my license. all response we submitted to DEA, on behalf of OakmontScript, we were accurate and complete! We decided not to contest DEA ruling recommendation!".
- Pharmacist Shi held a MCSR as a Board-Certified Geriatric Pharmacist from 6/23/16-6/23/17. A review of her CPE Monitor showed the following CEs reported: 6 CEs for 2016 (4 live/law), 10 CEs on 9/11/17 (no live); 2 CEs for 2018 (no live or law); 25.25 CEs for 2019; no CEs for 2020 or 2021 as of 9/10/2021.

<u>ACTION</u>: Motion by T. FENSKY, seconded by S. HAMILTON, and voted unanimously by those present, to refer the matter (PHA-2021-0073), to the office of the prosecution for the issuance of an order to show cause and to authorize resolution of the matter by a consent agreement for VOLUNTARY SUSPENSION for at least 1 year, with special terms to include may not petition for reinstatement until remediated any CE deficiency on a 3:1 basis (including 10 CEs in the area of ethics), and retake and pass MPJE. Additionally, refer the matter to DCP Re: MSCR.

Case #2/CAS-2021-0512		
SA-INV-18073	George Owusu-Ansah, PH26263	Time: 09:22 AM

#### RECUSAL: NONE

<u>DISCUSSION</u>: J. TRAN presented and summarized the investigative report that pertained to these matters.

- BORP was notified through NABP's Clearinghouse in June 2021, that Pharmacist Owusu-Ansah's Texas pharmacist license was reprimanded by the TXBOP.
- Specifically, on or about April 2, 2020, in the United States District Court for the District of Maine, Pharmacist Owusu-Ansah was convicted of the misdemeanor offense of identity theft.

Page 9 of 11

Draft Minutes General Session: 10/1/21 BOP Approved: 10/15/21

- The April 2, 2020, USAO-Maine media release stated that on February 11, 2020, during a traffic stop, Pharmacist Owusu-Ansah presented a New Jersey driver's license, issued in another person's name, as his own to a Maine State Police trooper and the United States Border Patrol Agents. He later used the New Jersey driver's license to travel out of state. Border Agents later learned his true identity. On February 16, 2020, agents detained him on immigration-related offenses, including an order of deportation. He was charged federally on March 13, 2020, and went into federal custody on that date.
- In his statement, Pharmacist Owusu-Ansah indicated that on February 12, 2020, he was stopped in Maine for a routine traffic stop. His vehicle searched and the ID he had on him was of an acquaintance. He was arrested and placed in jail for immigration irregularity and released by the judge.

<u>ACTION</u>: Motion by T. FENSKY, seconded by S. HAMILTON, and voted unanimously by those present, to elevate the matter (SA-INV-18073), to a complaint, and then refer the complaint to the Office of Prosecution for the issuance of an order to show cause and to authorize resolution of the matter by a consent agreement for REPRIMAND.

Topic XI:		Executive Session Call to Order:	Time: 9:25 AM
By:	J. Lanza		

Action: A motion was made by to S. HAMILTON enter Executive Session; Seconded by K. THORNELL and Board Members present voted unanimously by roll call to approve motion. Roll call attendance: J. Lanza, yes; S. Hamilton, yes; C. Belisle, yes; A. Stein; J. Rocchio, yes; J. Chin, yes; S. Cornacchio, yes; R. Lopez, yes; T. Fensky, yes; D. Perry, yes. K. Thornell, yes.

Topic XII:65C Sessions MGL c. 112 section 65CTime: 10:02 AM

DISCUSSION: None

ACTION: President J. Lanza request a motion to enter 65C.

At 10:02 AM S. Hamilton, seconded by J. Chin and voted unanimously by all those present to enter 65C by roll call vote.

## Topic XIII

## ADJOURMENT OF MEETING

TIME: 10:55 AM

ACTION: Motion by T. Fensky seconded by J. Chin and voted unanimously by those present, to adjourn from General Session by roll call vote.

## EXHIBITS USED DURING THE OPEN SESSION OF THE MEETING

Page **10** of **11** Draft Minutes General Session: 10/1/21 BOP Approved: 10/15/21

- 1. Draft Agenda of the 10/1/21 General Session
- 2. Draft Minutes of the 9/17/21 Meeting
- 3. Report on Applications approved pursuant to Licensure Policy 13-01
- 4. Report on probation
- 5. Report on Board Delegated Complaint Review to licensure policy 14-02
- 6. Report on Above Action Levels approved by Staff Action 16-04
- 7. Report on PSUD 17-03
- 8. Application: Fairhaven Pharmacy Inc New Community Pharmacy
- 9. Application: Sebela Pharmacy RxDirect -New Community Pharmacy
- 10. Application: Genoa Healthcare/Springfield- New Community Pharmacy
- 11. Application: Spectra Medical Devices-Transfer of Ownership
- 12. Gene Svirsky PH26669 PHA-2019-0021
- 13. PTT License Extension: PTT08477 Londono, Hong
- 14. PTT License Extension: PTT05905 Marks, Shatara
- 15. PTT License Extension: PTT08488 Marques, Karen
- 16. Policy 2020-11 Vaccine Administration
- 17. Policy 2020-04 Continuing Education CE Requirements
- 18. CAS-2021-0776 PHA-2021-0073 Jufang Shi PH27349
- 19. CAS-2021-0512 SA-INV-18073 George Owusu-Ansah PH26263

Respectfully Submitted, Carly Jean-Francois, NP, Secretary